
1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, June 17th, 2024 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

6:00 p.m. Meeting Called to Order 

Invocation  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

 

Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on June 3rd, 2024. (A) 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Budget Amendments Journal Entry Proof (B) 

2. Approve Budget Amendment for Senior Services in the Amount of $4,000.00 (C) 

3. Approve Budget Amendment for Cooperative Extension in the Amount of $ 3,220.00 

(D) 

4. Tax and Solid Waste Releases - #21924 - #21939 (E) 

5. Corrected Tax and Solid Waste Releases #21914 - #21916 (F) 

6. Duplin County Health Department Bad Debt & Deceased Write Off for Duplin County 

EMS through May 2014 (G) 

7. Adopt Amended Resolution to Call Special Election on the Sale of Malt Beverages 

and Unfortified Wine in Duplin County and Authorize the Chairman to Sign (H) 

8. Adopt a Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring 

Sheriff’s Office Employee Lieutenant Michael Maready and Authorize the Chairman 

to Sign (I) 

9. Adopt a Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring 

Sheriff’s Office Employee Sergeant Randy Forster and Authorize the Chairman to 

Sign (J) 

10. Schedule a Public Hearing for July 15th, 2024 Regarding a Request from Ronald 

Kenan to Name a Lane at the 900 Block of Old Wilmington Road, Wallace, NC; 

Island Creek Township; Ronald Ann Lane (K) 

11. Approve Contract Between Duplin County and Vayda Cole to Serve as a Summer 

Intern at the Duplin County Library and Authorize Chairman to Sign (L) 



2 
 

12. Appoint Jessica Melton and Sonia Guardado to the Tourism Development Authority 

Board for a Four (4) Year Term Beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2028 and 

Appoint Tabatha Walsh as the Duplin County Tourism Development Authority Board 

Chairman Beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 (M) 

13. Re-Appoint Mayor A.J. Connors to the James Sprunt Community College Board of 

Trustees for a Term Ending June 30, 2028 (N) 

 
 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 

• Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Inquiry (O) 

 

    REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

6:05 p.m. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker) 

 

6:15 p.m.  Receive Road Concerns 

 

6:20 p.m. Bryan Miller, County Manager 

 Adopt Fiscal Year 24-25 Duplin County Budget Ordinance (P) 

 General Comments/Announcements 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Acquisition of Real Property 143-318.11(a)(5) 

  

 

REPORTS (Q) 

Animal Services – May 2024 

Building Inspections – May 2024 

Communications/911 Addressing – May 2024 

Cooperative Extension  May 2024 

Garage – May 2024 

Register of Deeds – May 2024 

Soil & Water – May 2024 

Solid Waste – May 2024 

Tourism – April – May 2024 

 

ADJOURN 

The Board will adjourn until Monday, July 1st, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, 

N.C. 

 



1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, June 17th, 2024 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

COMMISSIONER’S INFORMATION BULLETIN 

 

TO:   Commissioner Branch  

            Commissioner Dowe  

Commissioner D. Edwards 

Commissioner Garner 

Commissioner J. Edwards 

 

FROM:   Jaime W. Carr/Clerk to the Board 

 

DATE:    Monday, June 17th, 2024 

   

SUBJECT:    Commissioner’s Meeting 

 

1. Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Edwards 

 

2. Invocation given by _________________ 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 

4. Approval of agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Members of the Board and/or the County 

Manager/Assistant County Manager and/or the Clerk to the Board may request to make 

any changes or additions to the proposed agenda. 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the meeting agenda. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

5. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on June 3rd, 2024. (A) 



2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes of the June 3rd, 2024 

Board of Commissioners meeting as presented. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Budget Amendments Journal Entry Proof (B) 

2. Approve Budget Amendment for Senior Services in the Amount of $4,000.00 (C) 

3. Approve Budget Amendment for Cooperative Extension in the Amount of $ 3,220.00 

(D) 

4. Tax and Solid Waste Releases - #21924 - #21939 (E) 

5. Corrected Tax and Solid Waste Releases #21914 - #21916 (F) 

6. Duplin County Health Department Bad Debt & Deceased Write Off for Duplin County 

EMS through May 2014 (G) 

7. Adopt Amended Resolution to Call Special Election on the Sale of Malt Beverages 

and Unfortified Wine in Duplin County and Authorize the Chairman to Sign (H) 

8. Adopt a Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring 

Sheriff’s Office Employee Lieutenant Michael Maready and Authorize the Chairman 

to Sign (I) 

9. Adopt a Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring 

Sheriff’s Office Employee Sergeant Randy Forster and Authorize the Chairman to 

Sign (J) 

10. Schedule a Public Hearing for July 15th, 2024 Regarding a Request from Ronald 

Kenan to Name a Lane at the 900 Block of Old Wilmington Road, Wallace, NC; 

Island Creek Township; Ronald Ann Lane (K) 

11. Approve Contract Between Duplin County and Vayda Cole to Serve as a Summer 

Intern at the Duplin County Library and Authorize Chairman to Sign (L) 

12. Appoint Jessica Melton and Sonia Guardado to the Tourism Development Authority 

Board for a Four (4) Year Term Beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2028 and 

Appoint Tabatha Walsh as the Duplin County Tourism Development Authority Board 

Chairman Beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 (M) 

13. Re-Appoint Mayor A.J. Connors to the James Sprunt Community College Board of 

Trustees for a Term Ending June 30, 2028 (N) 

 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:   Motion to approve the consent agenda. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 



3 
 

• Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Inquiry (O) 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker)  

 

 

2. Chairman Edwards will receive road concerns from members of the Board or the public on 

behalf of the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  
  

 

3. Bryan Miller, County Manager, will appear before the Board to request the adoption of the 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Duplin County Budget Ordinance. (P) 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion to adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Duplin County 

Budget Ordinance and authorize the Chairman to sign. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

 

4. Bryan Miller, County Manager, will appear before the Board to make 

announcements/comments. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Acquisition of Real Property 143-318.11(A)(5) 

  

 

REPORTS (Q) 

Animal Services – May 2024 

Building Inspections – May 2024 

Communications/911 Addressing – May 2024 

Cooperative Extension 

Garage – May 2024 

Register of Deeds – May 2024 

Senior Services – May 2024 

Soil & Water – May 2024 

Solid Waste – May 2024 

Tourism – April – May 2024 

 

 

ADJOURN 

 

The Board will adjourn until Monday, July 1st, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, N.C. 

 - May 2024



4 
 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 



 

1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, June 3rd, 2024 

Lois Britt Agricultural Building 

Ed Emory Auditorium 

165 Agriculture Drive 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

 The Duplin County Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, June 3rd, 2024 

at the Lois Britt Agricultural Building in the Ed Emory Auditorium located at 165 Agriculture 

Drive, Kenansville, N.C. 

 Present:  Commissioners:  Dexter Edwards; Elwood Garner; Jesse L. Dowe, III; Wayne 

Branch; and Justin Edwards. 

 

 Also Present: Bryan Miller, County Manager; Carrie Shields, Assistant County Manager; 

Tim Wilson, County Attorney; Chelsey Lanier, Finance Officer; Jaime W. Carr, Clerk to the 

Board and Jasmine Savage, Administrative Liaison.  

 

Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Edwards. 

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 Invocation was given by Reverend A.J Connors, Mayor for the Town of Warsaw. Mayor 

Connors then led those in attendance in the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States 

of America. 

 

Approval of the Meeting Agenda 

 

 Chairman Edwards asked if the members of the Board approved the proposed meeting 

agenda, and if any Board Member, County Manager, Assistant County Manager, or Clerk to the 

Board wished to make any changes or additions to the agenda. Jaime W. Carr, Clerk to the 

Board, requested to amend Item # 8 on the consent agenda to read Adopt a Resolution 

Authorizing Division of Water Infrastructure Application 2024 Lead Service Line Project Duplin 

County and authorize Chairman to sign all associated documents.   

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

2 
 

 Motion was made by Commissioner J. Edwards, seconded by Commissioner Dowe, 

carried unanimously to approve the meeting agenda with the amendment made by the Clerk to 

the Board.     

Approval of the Minutes – Governing Body 

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner J. Edwards, seconded by Commissioner Branch, 

carried unanimously, to approve the minutes of the May 20th, 2024 Board of Commissioners 

meeting as presented. 

  

    REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Branch, seconded by Commissioner Dowe, carried 

unanimously, to approve the consent agenda which consists of Budget Amendments Journal 

Entry Proof; Tax and Solid Waste Releases - #21903 - #21923; Approve Duplin County Public 

Transportation FY26 Grant Forms (Title VI Program Report; DBE/MBE/WBE/HUB Anticipated 

Vendor Awards Form; DBE Good Faith Efforts Certification; FY26 Delegation of Authority; 

and EEO Questionnaire) and Authorize Chairman to Sign; Approve Work Authorization Four (4) 

with Parrish & Partners for Duplin County EDC – Airpark Road and Utility Improvements 

(Constructions Administration Services) in an Amount not to Exceed $309,989.00 and Authorize 

Chairman to Sign; Approve Contract Between Duplin County and Chatham Civil Contracting, 

LLC for Duplin AirPark Roadway & Utilities in the Amount of $5,194,276.00 and Authorize 

Chairman to Sign; Approve Technical Services Agreement Between Duplin County and 

McDavid Associates, Inc. for 2023 AirPark Water & Sanitary Sewer Improvements in an 

Amount not to Exceed $170,400.00 and Authorize Chairman to Sign; Approve Contract to Audit 

Accounts for Fiscal Year (FY) 24 Between Duplin County and RH CPA’s in an Amount not to 

Exceed $61,655.00 Plus $2,750.00 for any Single Audit that may be Required and Authorize 

Chairman to Sign; Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Division of Water Infrastructure Application 

2024 Lead Service Line Project Duplin County and Authorize Chairman to Sign all Associated 

Documents; Resolution to Call Special Election on the Sale of Malt Beverages and Unfortified 

Wine in Unincorporated Areas of County. 

 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 

Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report 

 

 

AGENDA 

Public Comments    

 

 No Public Comments 

  

End Public Comments  
 



 

3 
 

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, appeared before the Board to conduct a public hearing on 

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-2025 Duplin County Budget.  Pursuant to NC General Statute 159-12, 

before Duplin County can adopt the county’s budget ordinance, the Board of County 

Commissioners must first hold a public hearing at which time any persons who wish to be heard 

on the budget may appear.  

 

Chairman Edwards opened the Public Hearing 

 

Matesha Jones asked if there was money in the budget for the playground at Kenansville 

Park. 

 

County Manager Miller responded that Kenansville park is the Town of Kenansville’s 

jurisdiction and the County would be happy to work with the town to receive appropriations.   

 

Chairman Edwards closed the Public Hearing 

 

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, appeared before the Board to conduct a public hearing on 

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-2025 Duplin County Economic Development Budget.  Pursuant to 

NC General Statute 158-7.19(c), before any appropriation or expenditure can be made for 

Economic Development a public hearing must be held.  

 

Chairman Edwards opened the Public Hearing 

 

No Public Comments 

 

Chairman Edwards closed the Public Hearing 

 

 Melisa Brown, Senior Services Director, appeared before the Board to present the 2024 

Duplin Governor Volunteer Service Award to the Faison Sea Scout Ship 55.  

 

 Brandon McMahon, Emergency Medical Services Director; Dustin Swinson Emergency 

Medical Services Training Officer; and Dr. Jon Kornegay, Emergency Medical Services Medical 

Director, appeared before the Board to present EMS Lifesaver Awards to Captain Abby Cannon; 

Paramedic Neal Mobley; Paramedic Ryan Schallock; EMT Justin Chapman; Captain Luis 

Arellano; and EMT Canaan Weston. Lieutenant Christopher Jackson and EMT David Tollefson 

also received awards, however they were unable to attend. 

 

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, appeared before the Board to make 

announcements/comments. 

 Motion was made by Commissioner J. Edwards, seconded by Commissioner Branch, 

carried unanimously, to adjourn until Monday, June 17th, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, N.C. 

 
 

_________________________

Jaime W. Carr 



 

4 
 

Clerk to the Board 



jaime.carr
Agenda













BA #     Duplin County

Budget Amendment

Department Title

Department Head's Signature

 (form can be e-mailed to Finance from Dept. Head)

All amendments involving revenues must be approved by the Board of Commissioners

Brief description of why this amendment is being requested:

Revenue 

code Line Item Description Amount

Expense 

code Line Item Description Amount

5600-35621 Homebound Nutrition 4,000.00 5950-41978 Caterer 4,000.00

Total 4,000.00 Total 4,000.00

Finance Signature

Date Approved:

Manager Signature

Date Approved:

Commissioner Approval

Date Approved:

6/14/2024

Senior Services

Melisa S. Brown

Budget the additional funds in caterer expenditure to purchase meals for homebound meal clients.

jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda



















 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-27 

 

County of Duplin  

Office of the County Commissioners 

 
 
 

AMENDED RESOLUTION TO CALL SPECIAL ELECTION ON THE SALE OF MALT 

BEVERAGES AND UNFORTIFIED WINE IN DUPLIN COUNTY 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 18B-600 and 163-287, the Duplin County Board of 

Commissioners has the authority to call for a special election on the sale of malt beverages and unfortified 

wine; and  

 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. § 163-287 states that, prior to calling a special election, the Board of 

County Commissioners shall adopt a resolution specifying the details of the election; and  

 WHEREAS, the Duplin County Board of Commissioners desires to allow eligible residents the 

opportunity to vote on the sale of malt beverages and unfortified wine in Duplin County; 

 WHEREAS, the Duplin County Board of Commissioners previously adopted a Resolution calling 

for a special election on the sale of malt beverages and unfortified wine in only the unincorporated areas of 

Duplin County; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 18B-604, the requested special election on the sale of 

malt beverages and unfortified wine shall apply throughout Duplin County; and 

 WHEREAS, this Amended Resolution is intended to clarify that, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 

18B-604, the requested special election on the sale of malt beverages and unfortified wine applies 

throughout Duplin County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Duplin County Board of Commissioners requests 

that the Duplin County Board of Elections conduct a special election on the sale of malt beverages and 

unfortified wine during the 2024 general election to be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, pursuant to the 

terms as set forth below.  

1. The special election shall be held in accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes and 

conducted on the following propositions: 

 

a. To permit the “on-premises” and “off-premises” sale of malt beverages in Duplin 

County. 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

 
 

 

[ ]  FOR 

[ ]  AGAINST  

 

b. To permit the “on-premises” and “off-premises sale of unfortified wine in Duplin 

County. 

 

[ ]  FOR 

[ ]  AGAINST  

 

2. The Clerk to the Duplin County Board of Commissioners is hereby authorized and directed to mail 

or deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Duplin County Board of Elections within three 

(3) business days after the passage hereof. 

 

3. The Duplin County Board of Elections shall publish notice of the special election in accordance 

with the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 18B-601(h) and 163-207(b).  

 

 

Adopted this the 17th day of June 2024.  

        

  

        _____________________________   

        Dexter B. Edwards, Chairman 

        Duplin County Board of Commissioners 

 

  

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________    

Jaime W. Carr 

Clerk to the Board 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-27 

 

County of Duplin  

Office of the County Commissioners 

 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF DUPLIN 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PRESENTATION OF BADGE AND  
SERVICE WEAPON TO RETIRING SHERIFF’S OFFICE EMPLOYEE 

 
 

WHEREAS, The board is requested to authorize the Sheriff of Duplin County to present retired 
Lieutenant Michael Maready his Duplin County Sheriff’s Office badge and service weapon pursuant to 
state law and past county practices in recognition of their retirement from the Duplin County Sheriff’s 
Office and County of Duplin; 
 
WHEREAS, Retired Lieutenant Michael Maready spent twelve years of his law enforcement career 
with the Duplin County Sheriff’s Office. Lieutenant Maready has served enforcing our laws, arresting 
criminals who have violated the law and worked to provide peace and safety for all of the citizens of 
Duplin County; 
 
WHEREAS, All North Carolina retirement rules have been complied with and the effective date of 
retirement for Lieutenant Maready is June 1, 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §20-187.2 provides for the presentation of an officers 
badge upon their retirement and also provides for the governing body, in its discretion, to present 
the retiring officer with their service weapon after they receive a handgun permit.  A Concealed carry 
permit has been obtained by this officer to allow the legal transfer of his firearm; 
 
WHEREAS, It has been the practice of past Duplin County Boards of Commissioners to present 
retiring deputies with their badge and service weapon; 
 
WHEREAS, In keeping with the North Carolina General Statutes and past Duplin County government 
practices, it is recommended that Lieutenant Maready be presented with his badge and Glock Model 
G-26 service weapon (serial numbers AFSF400). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Duplin County Board of Commissioners that the 
Sheriff of Duplin County is authorized to present retired officer Lieutenant Michael Maready his Duplin 
County Sheriff’s Office badge and service weapon pursuant to state law and past county practices in 
recognition of their retirement from the Duplin County Sheriff’s Office and County of Duplin. 
 
 
Adopted this the 17th day of June 2024.         

  
        _____________________________   
ATTEST:       Dexter B. Edwards, Chairman 
        Duplin County Board of Commissioners 
_____________________________     
Jaime W. Carr 
Clerk to the Board  

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-28 

 

County of Duplin  

Office of the County Commissioners 

 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF DUPLIN 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PRESENTATION OF BADGE AND  
SERVICE WEAPON TO RETIRING SHERIFF’S OFFICE EMPLOYEE 

 
 

WHEREAS, The board is requested to authorize the Sheriff of Duplin County to present retired 
Sergeant Randy Forster his Duplin County Sheriff’s Office badge and service weapon pursuant to 
state law and past county practices in recognition of their retirement from the Duplin County Sheriff’s 
Office and County of Duplin; 
 
WHEREAS, Retired Sergeant Randy Forster spent twenty one years of his law enforcement career 
with the Duplin County Sheriff’s Office. Sergeant Forster has served enforcing our laws, arresting 
criminals who have violated the law and worked to provide peace and safety for all of the citizens of 
Duplin County; 
 
WHEREAS, All North Carolina retirement rules have been complied with and the effective date of 
retirement for Sergeant Forster is July 1, 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §20-187.2 provides for the presentation of an officers 
badge upon their retirement and also provides for the governing body, in its discretion, to present 
the retiring officer with their service weapon after they receive a handgun permit.  A Concealed carry 
permit has been obtained by this officer to allow the legal transfer of his firearm; 
 
WHEREAS, It has been the practice of past Duplin County Boards of Commissioners to present 
retiring deputies with their badge and service weapon; 
 
WHEREAS, In keeping with the North Carolina General Statutes and past Duplin County government 
practices, it is recommended that Sergeant Forster be presented with his badge and Glock Model G-
26 service weapon (serial number APSP445). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Duplin County Board of Commissioners that the 
Sheriff of Duplin County is authorized to present retired officer Sergeant Randy Forster his Duplin 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

 
 

County Sheriff’s Office badge and service weapon pursuant to state law and past county practices in 
recognition of their retirement from the Duplin County Sheriff’s Office and County of Duplin. 
 
 
Adopted this the 17th day of June 2024.         

  
        _____________________________   
ATTEST:       Dexter B. Edwards, Chairman 
        Duplin County Board of Commissioners 
_____________________________     
Jaime W. Carr 
Clerk to the Board  



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 
county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 

 

Representative Name and Department:  Melissa Kennedy/ 911 
Addressing 

Meeting Date: 06/17/2024 

Subject:   Request Public Hearing in accordance of Duplin County 911 Addressing road naming 
Ordinance 

Summary, explanation and background:  Request a public hearing for Ronald Kenan to name a 
lane at 900 block of Old Wilmington Rd Wallace- Island Creek Township- Ronald Ann Ln 

Requested Action:  To approve public hearing for July 15, 2024 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:   

Budget impact for subsequent years:   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: 0 

Attachments:   

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 



 



 

 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 
Trisha-Ann Hoskins by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 



jaime.carr
Agenda















jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda













































jaime.carr
Agenda



General Government $9,483,515

Public Safety $21,182,789

Environmental Protection $805,270

Economic and Physical Development $1,872,131

Human Services $17,602,078

Education $13,124,389

Cultural and Recreational $1,941,653

Contributions/Transfers $2,202,138

Debt Service $708,270

Ad Valorem Property Tax $31,934,796

Motor Vehicle Tax $4,426,164

State Funds $9,044,107

Department Fees $6,370,079

Department Fees-Restricted $375,000

Sales Tax $10,669,600

Other Revenues $2,982,000

Fund Balance $3,120,487

Emergency Telephone System Fund $435,376 

Emergency Telephone Fees $249,558 

Interest Earned $18,177 

Fund Balance $167,640.89

Section 4.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Emergency Telephone System Fund for 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 3.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Emergency Telephone System Fund for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore 

established for the County:

Section 1.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of the county 

government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025, in accordance with 

the chart of accounts heretofore established for this county:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

DUPLIN COUNTY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Duplin, North Carolina:

Section 2.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:



Capital Outlay, Improvements to Sites $660,068.00

Capital Outlay, Equipment/Furniture $255,000.00

Capital Outlay, Vehicles $195,000.00

Capital Outlay, High Schools $300,000.00

Capital Outlay, Elementary Schools $75,000.00

Debt Service Transfer $3,776,876.00

Sales Taxes $3,576,876 

Interest $200,000 

Fund Balance $1,485,068 

AE&P Reserve $25,000 

Transfer from General Fund $25,000 

Property Revaluation $439,537 

Mapping $39,060 

Ad Valorem Property Tax $181,158 

Interest $10,500 

Section 5.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Capital Reserve School Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 6.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Capital Reserve School Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025

Section 7.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Automation Enhancement/Preservation Fund for 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore 

established for the County:

Section 8.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Automation 

Enhancement/Preservation Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 9.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Property Revaluation Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 10.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Property Revaluation Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:



Fund Balance                                                  $286,939 

Oak Wolfe Fire District $181,198.08

Glisson Fire District $267,947.06

Sarecta Fire District $197,627.40

East Duplin Fire District $220,856.45

Fountaintown Fire District                              $139,013.14

Albertson Fire District $212,478.47

Stacy Britt Fire District $311,536.52

Franklin Fire District $71,715.53

Northeast Fire District $370,928.92

Chinquapin Fire District $185,465.78

Duplin Pender Fire District $191,408.34

Faison Fire District $160,181.24

Greenevers Fire District $147,801.29

Lyman Fire District $128,324.95

North Duplin Fire District $147,153.54

Potters Hill Fire District $171,994.48

Rosemary Fire District $306,280.50

Teachey Fire District $221,036.04

Waylin Fire District $75,373.12

Liberty Hall Fire District $282,686.86

Magnolia Fire District $103,268.45

Pin Hook Fire District $103,268.45

Pricetown Fire District $26,747.19

Pink Hill Fire District $30,736.94

Ad Valorem/Motor Vehicle Taxes $2,067,001 

Transfer from General Fund $556,008 

Sales Tax $1,647,764 

Duplin Commons $578,270 

Section 11.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the County Fire Districts Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 12.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the County Fire Districts Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 13.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Debt Service Fund for fiscal year beginning July 

1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established for the County:



Animal Shelter $130,000 

2017 School LOB’s $3,998,319 

Transfer from General Fund $929,713 

Transfer from School Capital Reserve $3,776,876 

Water Administration $1,653,696 

County Water $135,700 

Albertson Water $148,253 

District B Water $258,313 

District D Water $343,370 

District E Water $331,563 

District F Water $566,533 

District G Water $344,697 

System Charges and Fees $3,172,125 

Sales of Inventory $110,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated $500,000 

Water Debt $977,063 

Transfer from Water Fund $977,063 

Section 16. It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Duplin County Water Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 17.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 18.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water Debt Service Fund for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 15.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Duplin County Water Fund for fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 14.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:



Operations $1,633,767 

State Dept. of Trans. $1,519,000 

Agency Purchased Services $55,000 

Other $25,000 

Fund Balance $34,767 

Operations $1,490,782 

Hangar Rent $175,731 

Sales of Fuel $1,152,691 

Transfer from General Fund $0 

Other $77,613 

Fund Balance Appropriated $84,747 

Solid Waste Collection and Disposal $4,375,344 

Tire Collection and Disposal $127,929 

White Goods Disposal $33,004 

User Fees $1,870,560 

Charges for Services $1,786,750 

Section 23.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Solid Waste Fund for the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established for the 

County:

Section 24.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Solid Waste Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 19.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Transportation Fund for fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established for the 

County:

Section 20.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Transportation Fund for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 21.  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Airport Commission Fund for fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 22.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Airport Commission Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:



Other Taxes and Fees $407,960 

Fund Balance $471,007 

Benefit Expense $6,467,000 

Premiums Collected $5,585,000 

Interest Earned $10,000 

Transfer from General Fund $872,000 

General Fund 0.7350

Oak Wolfe Fire District 0.0500

Glisson Fire District 0.0650

Sarecta Fire District 0.0550

East Duplin Fire District 0.0458

Albertson Fire District 0.0750

Stacy Britt Fire District 0.0700

Franklin Fire District 0.1000

NorthEast Fire District 0.0850

North Duplin Fire District 0.0500

Chinquapin Fire District 0.0900

Fountaintown Fire District 0.0500

Goshen Fire District 0.0650

Greenevers Fire District 0.0700

Lyman Fire District 0.0500

Waylin Fire District 0.0700

Potters Hill Fire District 0.0700

Rosemary Fire District 0.0700

Teachey Fire District 0.0700

Duplin Pender Fire District 0.0700

Liberty Hall Fire District 0.0700

Section 25.   The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Health Insurance Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established 

for the County:

Section 26.  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Health Insurance Fund for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025:

Section 27.  There is hereby levied the following tax rates per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of property as 

listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024, for the purpose of raising the revenue listed as Property Taxes in the General 

Fund, the Property Revaluation Fund, and the respective County Fire District Funds:



            General Fund:

Current Expense $10,500,163 

Debt Service for Schools $221,443 

Capital Outlay School Fund:

Capital Improvements to Sites $660,068 

Capital Outlay High School Recreation                  $300,000 

Capital Outlay Elementary                 $75,000 

Capital Equipment & Furniture $255,000 

Capital Vehicles $195,000 

Debt Service for Schools $3,776,876 

  

The General Fund tax rate is based on an estimated valuation of $4,177,781,907 for real and personal property for 

the purposes of taxation for the 2024-2025 fiscal year, estimated valuation of $172,894,694 for the purposes of 

public service, and an estimated valuation of $587,802,231 for vehicles for the purposes of taxation for the 2024-

2025 fiscal year with an estimated rate of collection of 96.50% for property taxes and 99.50% for vehicle taxes. 

Section 28.  There is levied a per ton solid waste disposal fee as approved by the Board to cover the cost of solid 

waste disposal.  There is also levied an availability/disposal fee as approved by the Board to cover the cost of solid 

waste collection, disposal, and recycling.

Section 29.  The Duplin County Departmental Fee Schedules for 2024-2025 (attached).

Section 30.  The mileage reimbursement rate is per the IRS standard mileage rate.

Section 31.  In accordance with G. S. 115C-429(b), the Board of Education appropriation is allocated as:  

Section 32.  The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations as contained herein under the 

following conditions:

In accordance with G. S. 115C-433(b), the Duplin County Board of Commissioners specifies that the Board of 

Education must obtain approval of the Board of Commissioners for any budget amendment that increases or 

decreases the amount of county appropriation to a purpose or function by ten percent (10%) or more from the 

amount contained in the budget ordinance adopted by the Board of County Commissioners.  Any amendment to 

the Capital Outlay School Fund must be approved by the County Commissioners prior to making the amendment.



e. They may, within budgeted appropriations, approve all change orders and amendments to contracts not 

previously approved by the Board of Commissioners.

Section 34.  Authority to execute contracts - The County Manager, or their designee, is hereby authorized to 

execute contractual documents under the following conditions:

a. They may execute contracts for construction or repair projects that do not require formal competitive bid 

procedures and do not exceed $25,000

b. They may execute contracts for amounts less than $25,000 for: (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 

materials, or equipment which are within budgeted appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of 

one year or less and within departmental appropriations; (3) lease of personal property within budgeted 

appropriations for more than 12 months; and (4) service contracts within appropriations or contracts for 12 months 

or less.
c. They may execute grant agreements to or from governmental units and other public, private, and non-profit 

organizations that are within budgeted appropriations, unless a grantor requires approval and execution by the 

Board of Commissioners.

d. They may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of buildings or land provided that such leases are of one-year 

duration or less and that funds therefore are within budgeted appropriations and less than $50,000

b. Examples of an emergency are: Hurricane, Tornado, Flood, Power Outage, Safety Services Communications 

Equipment Failure(s), acts of terrorism, or other situations that may place Duplin County Residents at risk or in 

danger.

a.   The Budget Officer may transfer amounts in any fund between line item expenditures, in any department 

between line item expenditures, or between departments in line item expenditures, including contingency 

appropriations, in excess of the $10,000 limitation (as stated in Section 32 of this Budget Ordinance) per budget 

transfer, with a report being submitted to the Governing Board at the next regular meeting.  These changes should 

not result in increases in recurring obligations, such as salaries, in future years.

Section 33.  Under Emergency situations only, the Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations as 

contained herein under the following conditions:

b. The Budget Officer may not transfer any amount between funds, except as approved by the Governing Board in 

the Budget Ordinance as amended.

a. The Budget Officer may transfer amounts:  in any fund between line item expenditures, in any department 

between line item expenditures or between departments in line item expenditures, including contingency 

appropriations, with a limitation of $10,000 per budget transfer, with a report being submitted to the Governing 

Board at the next regular meeting.  These changes should not result in increases in recurring obligations, such as 

salaries, in future years.



Adopted this the 17th day of June, 2024.

Dexter Edwards, Chairman

Attest:

Clerk

Section 35. Authority to Administer Pay and Classification Plan - The County Manager has full authority to 

administer the pay and classification plan. The County Manager is authorized to set salaries of employees at the 

time of hiring and/or promotion if the amount does not exceed the budget appropriations within the department. 

The following changes in positions, as they impact the departmental budget amounts, require approval of the 

Board of Commissioners:

a. Any increase in full-time, regular positions

b. Any transfer of positions between funds

Section 36.  Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the Governing Board, to the Budget 

Officer, and to the Finance Officer to be kept on file by them for their direction in the disbursement of funds.



jaime.carr
Agenda

































Duplin County Center
165C Agriculture Drive
Kenansville, NC 28349

TH
E
CULTIVATOR
A Review of May 2024

Livestock............................................................... Jessica Hall, Livestock and Forage
Hosted Southeast District Ag Agents' Meeting at Wilders Wagyu in Turkey, NC
Attended High Path Avian Influenza update zoom
Assisted with Coastal Plains Chicken Show and Processing Course
Started planning for the Sandhills Dairy Project where 4-Hers will be able to learn
about management of dairy calves and get the chance to show them. This project will
begin in the fall. Interested families should contact Jessica Hall.
Face-to-face contacts: 165, Non face-to-face contacts: 685

Livestock..................................................... Amanda Hatcher, Livestock and Forage
Assisted 14 farmers in nutrient management, 3 farmers in crop management, and 1
farmer in farm management
Conducted farm visits
Attended Southeast District Association of County Agricultural Agents meeting in
Turkey and met with individuals to prepare for hosting the state meeting in June
Assisted with 4-H shooting sports meetings
Provided mock interviews for North Duplin High School students
Attended Swine Innovation Forum in Goldsboro
Conducted animal waste class with 51 attending
Participated in nutrient management tour for biogas
Face-to-face contacts: 394, Non face-to-face contacts: 1,086

Website: https://duplin.ces.ncsu.edu
Duplin County Center-NCCE Facebook: https://go.ncsu.edu/zgvcr9a

4-H Facebook: https://go.ncsu.edu/om3spc0

Amanda Hatcher
County Extension

Director, Livestock

Wanda Bell
Administrative Assistant:
Director, 4-H, Family &

Consumer Sciences

Wanda Hargrove
Support Specialist:

Agriculture, Livestock,
Facilities Coordinator

Jessica Hall
Livestock and Forages

Della King
Agriculture, Field Crops

Tom Hroza
Horticulture

Rachel Ezzell
Family and Consumer

Science

James Hartsfield
Area Specialized Agent,
Farm Management NC

A&T State 

Walter Adams
Agriculture & Natural
Resources Technician 

NC A&T State

Bridget Huffman
4-H Youth Development

Charmae Kendall
4-H Program Assistant,

Youth
Agriculture/Livestock

Jasmine Williams
4-H Prevention

Coordinator

Phone: 910.296.2143
Fax:     910.296.2191

Notes from the Director.................................................................. Amanda Hatcher
Attended county department head meeting 
Compiled VAD press release with vice chair of VAD
Conducted employee evaluations
Assisted in staff appreciation event
Attended ECU Health Duplin foundation meeting
Attended Extension Community Association district day with ECA members in
Morehead City
Attended district CED and admin meeting in Bolivia and participated in zoom update

https://duplin.ces.ncsu.edu/
https://go.ncsu.edu/zgvcr9a
https://go.ncsu.edu/om3spc0


Family and Consumer Science (FCS)............. Rachel Ezzell, FCS Agent

Horticulture...................................................................... Tom Hroza, Horticulture

Britt Building
Monthly

Usage

May
Total number

of events:
40

Total attendance
for the events:

1533

Public events:
39

Private events: 
1

North Carolina State
University and North
Carolina A&T State

University commit themselves
to positive action to secure

equal opportunity regardless
of race, color, creed, national

origin, religion, sex, age,
veteran status or disability. In
addition, the two Universities
welcome all persons without
regard to sexual orientation.

North Carolina State
University, North Carolina
A&T State University, U.S.
Department of Agriculture,

and local governments
cooperating.   

Field Crops................................................................. Della King, Field Crop Agent
Assisted Growers as needed with Farm/Field Visits
Attended the Monthly Agronomic Program Crop/Irrigation Zooms
Attended Agent Trainings
Surveyed some Crops for Phase II of Beta Testing
Face-to-face contacts: 32, Non face-to-face contacts: 54

Compiled information on how to Grow Elderberries and  
the important role they can play in having a healthy
immune system.
Spoke with 100 - 2nd graders about pollinators and      
their importance to our food supply.
Attended a  cut flower training on how to plan, grow and
market cut flowers.

Spent time on the Studied abroad program through NC State learning about
Science, Extension, and Education in Greece. 
Attended lectures on nutrition, animal welfare, olive oil production and sensory
analysis, herbs, and more. 
Worked on grant proposal for garden and educational materials appropriate for
early childhood.
Face-to-face contacts: 317, Non face-to-face contacts: 2,207

Attended a training on medicinal plants and the benefits of being able to identify
them.
Attended a session on Permaculture which has become a big thing in sustainable
agriculture. We learned how to create a closed loop system where there is no waste.
Attended a workshop on irrigation and how to design systems that maximize water
use while increasing crop yields.
 Face-to-face contacts: 179, Non face-to-face contacts: 1,350

Small Farms..................James Hartsfield, Farm Management (Duplin/Sampson)
Hosted the Preparedness Fundamentals for Families Workshop 
Attended the Heirs Property Summit Event at Robeson County Extension 
Attended the Preparedness Fundamental for Families Workshop at the Harnett
County Extension 
Visited farmers to provide information on the NCA&TSU Small Farmer
Plasticulture Equipment Rental Cash Back Program.
Visited farmers to assist in collecting soil samples and completing information
forms.
Face-to-face contacts: 26, Non face-to-face contacts: 3,500



4-H and Youth Development..................................................................... Bridget Huffman, 4-H Agent
Assisted with Coastal Plains Chicken Show in Lenoir County.
Hosted last teen meeting before the summer where teens helped Arabella
Crews, who was running for 4-H District Reporter, with her campaign
booth and speech.
Held the 2024 SED 4-H Teen Retreat at the Trinity Center in Salter Path.
The weekend consisted of fun on the beach to exhilarating field day
games. SED 4-H'ers also took part in a service project, showcasing how
they each "Strive to Provide" in their communities! Our very own
Arabella Crews was voted as the 24-25 SED 4-H Reporter! We know
Arabella will represent Duplin well!! (Picture right)
Judged Coastal Plains Chicken Show project record books in Onslow
County.
Held New 4-H Chicken Club Interest Meeting. First club meeting kicks off
August 9th.

Three Duplin 4-H’ers, Blayton Moulton, Everett Ortiz, and Mason
Smith, participated in the Dinah Gore 4-H Healthy Food Challenge
in Raleigh on Saturday, May 18. They worked so well together,
overcame many obstacles that day, did their best, and learned so
much. They were competing against 9 other teams in their age
group of 11-13. They didn’t walk away with a win, but are
definitely winners in our book! Thanks to Brandy Moulton, club
leader and volunteer, for leading this group!

Held The Duplin County 4-H annual Talent Show. Winners were:        
1st place Dance: Madison Lackey, 1st place Vocal: Everley Bettison, 1st
place Instrumental: Jackson Smith, 1st place Other: Kemani Rivers, 2nd
place Other: Adira Bettison, and 3rd place Other: Mason Smith ages 14-
18 1st place Vocal went to Y’Anna Rivers. Cloverbuds were: Kingsley
Cason and Alivia Williams. Madison Lackey and Y’Anna Rivers were
chosen to represent Duplin County 4-H at 4-H District Activity Day on
June 14 at UMO. (Picture right)
Attended county staff updates, 4-H updates and trainings, reports, and
State Extension updates.
Face-to-face contacts: 450, Non face-to-face contacts: 6,525

Agriculture & Natural Resources........................................Walter Adams, Tech. (Duplin/Lenoir)
 Attended disaster preparedness workshop in Kenansville
Answered several calls regarding pesticide licensing and exams
Answered an email regarding hemp production
Face-to-face contacts: 17, Non face-to-face contacts: 90



Completed spring farm calendar program with kindergarten classes 
Visited Sandhill Paddocks Farms with Clover Critter 4-H Club to see
sheep and lambs
Started Leap into Sheep Program (Picture right)
Attended Pork Forum in Goldsboro
Participated in Lenoir Livestock Competition with Duplin skillathon and
quiz bowl teams
Continued weekly livestock skillathon practices 

Charmae Kendall, 4-H Agriculture/Livestock Program Assistant

Jasmine Williams, 4-H Prevention Coordinator
Continued monthly merchant education activities for Duplin and Sampson counties

Face-to-face contacts: 394, Non face-to-face contacts: 1,941






































